
2008-0407 384 Santa Trinita Avenue  Approved Minutes 
  July 28, 2008 
  Page 1 of 4 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES OF JULY 28, 2008 
 
2008-0407: The Martin Company [Applicant] TMG Santa Trinita LLC [Owner]: 
Application for a Use Permit on a 4.56 acre site to allow a new 99,317 square 
foot 4-story office building resulting in a 50% Floor Area Ratio. The property is 
located at 384 Santa Trinita Avenue (at Kern Ave) in an M-S (Industrial & 
Service) Zoning District.(Mitigated Negative Declaration)  (APN: 205-24-001) RK 
 
Ryan Kuchenig, Associate Planner, presented the staff report. He said staff 
recommends approval of this Use Permit. Mr. Kuchenig provided several 
corrections to the report: on page 1, the report makes reference to a “5.56 acre 
site” when it is actually a “4.56” acre site; on page 4 of the report, the 
Background chart should include a project that was approved in 2000 for a 
79,000 square foot building with a 40% FAR (Floor Area Ratio) that was never 
constructed; Condition of Approval (COA) 17.F should be removed as the site is 
not near the City’s recycled water system and the connection cannot be required 
at this time; and COA 19.I should state that the shower facilities shall be provided 
to meet the levels as specified in the LEED (Leadership in Energy and 
Environmental Design) certified checklist, rather than the ratio that is listed in the 
condition.  
 
Comm. McKenna said she really likes this project. She referred to page 9 of the 
report and discussed with staff the location of a third walkway that has been 
proposed. Comm. McKenna said she is concerned that the bus stop does not 
have a walkway and that it is too far from the building. Mr. Kuchenig explained 
that the pedestrian access is good for the nearby retail. Comm. McKenna said 
the bus stop accessibility is the only issue she has so that is pretty good.  
 
Comm. Sulser asked staff about the front setback of the building with staff 
confirming that the closest position of the building is 107 feet with the entrances 
being even further setback. Comm. Sulser and staff discussed the setbacks with 
staff stating that the setbacks are not out of character with the surrounding 
development. Staff explained their reasons for supporting the positioning of the 
building on the site in relation to significant landscaping and parking. Comm. 
Sulser discussed the height of the building, with staff stating that the majority of 
the building is about 60 feet in height and the circular feature in the middle is 
about 75 feet high which is the maximum allowed. Comm. Sulser said he is not 
uncomfortable with the height and was just curious about the layout.  
 
Comm. Klein said he is happy to see the developer improve the pedestrian flow 
and the added sidewalk. He asked about improving one of the crosswalks and 
who would be responsible to maintain the crosswalk markings and curbing. Gerri 
Caruso, Principal Planner said the City does have funding for this type of 
maintenance, but typically larger portions of improvements occur when there is a 



2008-0407 384 Santa Trinita Avenue  Approved Minutes 
  July 28, 2008 
  Page 2 of 4 
 
development to make the improvements. Comm. Klein further discussed the 
curbing with staff. Comm. Klein asked about the site, the previous demolition that 
occurred in 2000 and what protected trees had been there. Ms. Caruso said staff 
does not have that information and that she is not sure the tree protection 
ordinance was in place at the time of the project in 2000. She further commented 
that many earlier industrial sites were void of much landscaping. 
 
Comm. Travis referred to Attachment C, page 1 and asked staff about the 2.6 
million square feet in the development pool.  Ms. Caruso explained the history of 
the development pool which was a pool of square footage that was not being 
used on underdeveloped sites in industrial zoning districts. She said the extra 
square footage is available to be granted to projects that propose higher FARs.  
She said once the limit in the pool is reached then the City would need to rethink 
the development pool. 
 
Vice Chair Chang discussed with staff the speed limit, traffic signals and 
whether there are any stop signs on Kern as he said there is a lot pedestrian 
traffic. Mr. Kuchenig said he would have to verify if there is a stop sign on that 
intersection. Ms. Caruso said that typically if the traffic counts warrant signage 
then the signage is requested by the Traffic Division. Vice Chair Chang asked 
where the Arts in Private Development would be located. Staff said that would be 
determined by the Arts Commission. Vice Chair Chang commented that he likes 
the changes that have been made since the study session. 
 
Chair Rowe referred to page 9 of the report and asked staff to further explain the 
development pool. Staff explained that in the late 80’s, early 90’s that the Golden 
Triangle Task Force was formed in the region and recommended that cities 
consider adopting a maximum 35% FAR in their industrial areas, which 
Sunnyvale did. Staff explained that Sunnyvale began receiving requests for 
industrial projects exceeding the 35% FAR and in the late 90s created the 
development pool from identified sites and square footage in industrial areas that 
were underdeveloped and not using the maximum FAR for the site. She said the 
currently development pool has about 2.6 million square feet that can be devoted 
to industrial zones for projects proposed that exceed 35% FAR. Ms. Caruso said 
that ultimately City Council would determine whether this project would be 
allowed to draw from the pool and said the criteria for considering higher FAR 
developments and to grant pool square footage is shown in Attachment C. Ms. 
Caruso said the development pool allows economic development without 
exceeding the environmental limits of our General Plan. Chair Rowe commented 
that if the applicant meets the LEED certification on this project that the City 
grants an additional 5% FAR over the permitted FAR. Chair Rowe asked staff if 
the additional 5% FAR would reduce the amount of square footage to be drawn 
from the pool.  Ms. Caruso said she thought that the 29,795 would still be the 
square footage removed from the pool. Chair Rowe and staff further discussed 
the LEED certification for this project.  
 



2008-0407 384 Santa Trinita Avenue  Approved Minutes 
  July 28, 2008 
  Page 3 of 4 
 
Chair Rowe opened the public hearing. 
 
David Wright, a partner with the Martin Group, explained some of the projects 
that their Group has developed in Sunnyvale and other areas. He commented 
that they currently have 24 points towards the LEED certification and hope to 
eventually be in excess of 27 points to reach the silver level. Mr. Wright said their 
landscape architect, project architect, and LEED consultant are present this 
evening to answer questions.   
 
Sylvester Ramirez, project architect with Devcon, commented that staff has 
been a pleasure to work with and thanked the Commission for their input at the 
earlier study session. 
 
 

Chair Rowe closed the public hearing. 
 
Comm. McKenna moved for Alternative 1, to adopt the Negative Declaration 
and approve the Use Permit with attached conditions. Comm. Klein 
seconded the motion. 
 
Comm. McKenna said she likes the design of the building, the walking paths, 
the landscaping, the Traffic Demand Management, the public art, and that the 
developer is trying to reach a higher degree of conservation. She said she thinks 
it is a great project and her only concern is improved access to the bus stop. 
 
Comm. Klein said he would be supporting the motion. He commended the 
applicant for working with the staff to fix some of the issues and said this was a 
good staff report. He said he applauds the applicant for their LEED certification 
and said he hopes they reach the silver level. He said he likes the improvements 
to the pedestrian flow, bicycle parking, and unique architecture, and thinks this 
site will get good use.  
 
Comm. Sulser commended the applicant on the architecture. He said he was 
initially nervous about the layout of the plans and that maybe the building was 
pushed too far from the street. He said he is now won over due to the pedestrian 
access and landscaping that have been added to the plans. He said he looks 
forward to seeing this project completed. 
 
Comm. Travis said he would be supporting the motion and commended the 
applicant on their architecture and the work the applicant is making for the LEED 
certification. He said he agrees with the other Commissioners that this should be 
a great addition to the City. 
 
Vice Chair Chang said he likes the contemporary architecture, that the location 
will be perfect for this type of building, that the green features are a plus, and the 
landscaping is good.  He said he feels the art will be a nice addition. 



2008-0407 384 Santa Trinita Avenue  Approved Minutes 
  July 28, 2008 
  Page 4 of 4 
 
 
Chair Rowe said it was a pleasure to read this report as there are no requests 
for deviations from the code. She said she thinks the architecture is exciting, 
there is more landscaping than is required, and there are a lot of features 
provided beyond the requirements. She said this project is a good example of 
cooperation between the City of Sunnyvale and a developer.   
 
ACTION: Comm. McKenna made a motion on 2008-0407 to recommend to 
City Council to adopt the Negative Declaration and approve the Use Permit 
with attached conditions. Comm. Klein seconded.  Motion carried, 6-0-1, 
with Comm. Hungerford absent. 

 
APPEAL OPTIONS: This recommendation will be forwarded to City Council 
for consideration at the August 19, 2008 City Council meeting. 
 












